6/30/83

LABOR AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS LIBRARY

> 1980 - 1983 AGREEMENT between THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK

and HIGHLAND PARK FEDERATION OF EDUCATIONAL SECRETARIES AFT LOCAL 3863

School Dutrick of the City

rtlett Avenue

K. Mich, 4820.



# 1980 - 1983 AGREEMENT between THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK

## and

## HIGHLAND PARK FEDERATION OF EDUCATIONAL SECRETARIES AFT LOCAL 3863

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	Recognition 4	
2.	Agency Shop 4	
3.	Dues or Service Fee Checkoff 7	
4.	Reservation of Rights	
5.	Fair Employment Practices	
6.	Access to Board Information12	
7.	Payroll Deductions	
8.	Release Time	
9.	Professional Meetings, Conferences and Inservices	
10.	Communications	
11.	Grievance Procedure	
12.	Discipline and Discharge of Non-probationary Employees 19	
13.	New Probationary Employees	
14.	Personnel Files	
15.	Seniority	
16.	Promotions, Reassignments, Transfers	
	Vacancies	
17.	Layoff and Recall 29	
18.	Work Schedule 33	
19.	Sick Leave	
20.	Workers' Compensation	

21.	Illness or Death in the Immediate Family
22.	Personal Business Leave
23.	Leave Without Pay 43
24.	Vacations12-Month Employees 50
25.	Paid Holidays 53
26.	Bulletin Boards54
27.	New Classification54
28.	Jury Duty
29.	Contract Implementation Procedures . 55
30.	Medical Coverage and Other Fringe Benefits
31.	Tuberculosis Examinations 58
32.	Other Physical Examinations, Nervous Disorder
33.	Termination of Employment or Resignations
34.	Employees Hired for Special Projects Funded by Federal or State Govern-
	ments 60
35.	No Strike 60
36.	Appendix
37.	Ratification61
38.	Duration
39.	Printing of Agreement 62

THIS AGREEMENT entered into on this 1st day of October, 1980 by and between the Board of Education Board of Trustees of the School District of the City of Highland Park (hereinafter referred to as the "Employer") and the Highland Park Federation of Educational Secretaries (hereinafter referred to as the "Federation").

#### It is mutually agreed as follows:

## 1. **RECOGNITION**

Pursuant to and in accordance with all applicable provisions of Act 379 of the Public Act of 1965, as amended, the Employer recognizes the Federation as the sole exclusive representative for the purpose of collective bargaining with respect to rates of pay, wages, hours of employment, or other conditions of employment for the entire term of this Agreement for all secretarial and clerical staff in the School District of the City of Highland Park, excluding the Executive Secretary to the Assistant Superintendent-Personnel, Executive Secretary to the Assistant Superintendent-Business and Executive Secretaries to the President and Vice-Presidents of the college.

#### 2. AGENCY SHOP

(a) As condition of employment all employees covered by this Agreement and/or who become employees covered by this Agreement must:

(1) Pay service charges or service fees in full by November 30 of each school year, or authorize payroll deductions by September 30 of each school year.

(2) If newly-hired, pay service charges or service fees in full 60 days after initial date of employment or by payroll deductions (if available).

(b) No employee shall be terminated under this article unless:

(1) The Federation shall first notify the employee with a certified letter explaining that he/she is delinquent in not tendering the required Federation dues or service fee, and specifying the current amount of such delinquency, and warning him/her that unless such dues or service fee are tendered in full within ten days of such notice, he/she will be reported to the Employer for termination as provided in this article.

(2) The Federation shall furnish the Employer with a copy of the letter sent to the employee and the notice that he/she has not complied with the Federation's request. When requesting the Board to terminate the employee, the Federation will provide the following written certification: "The Federation certifies that (name) has failed to tender the required Federation dues or service fee required as a condition of continued employment under the Collective Bargaining Agreement and demands that, under the terms of the Agreement, the Employer terminate this employee."

(c) The Employer agrees that, within five (5) working days of the receipt of the notice provided in the preceding paragraph, it shall notify the Federation president, treasurer, and the employee who is in arrears in payment of membership dues or fees that his/her services shall be terminated at the end of ten (10) working days unless, in the meantime, the employee tenders the required dues or service fees in full, or a properly executed wage deduction authorization, prorated for the remaining pay periods. If the employee fails to comply within the required time, the Employer agrees to recommend to terminate the employee at the next scheduled Board meeting at which time the item can be placed on the agenda.

(d) The Federation agrees that in the event of litigation against the Employer, its agents or employees arising out of this provision, the Federation will co-defend and indemnify and hold harmless the Employer, its agents, or employees for any monetary award arising out of such litigation.

## 3. DUES OR SERVICE FEE CHECK OFF

(a) During the life of this Agreement, the Employer will deduct current uniform and periodic Federation dues or service fees from the pay of each bargaining unit employee who voluntarily executes and delivers to the Employer by the last working day of any September of any year either of the following authorization forms (Form A or Form B):

#### FORM A

## VOLUNTARY AUTHORIZATION FOR DEDUCTION OF FEDERATION DUES

Name\_\_\_

Social Security No. \_\_\_\_\_ School or Building \_\_\_\_\_

I authorize the Highland Park Board of Education Board of Trustees to deduct from wages earned or to be earned by me a monthly service fee and to remit the same to the Federation at such time and in such manner as may be designated by the Chief Administrator-/Business but not less than monthly.

I agree that this authorization shall remain in

effect from year to year unless revoked by me in writing to the Chief Administrator/Business and the Federation treasurer or upon the termination of my employment with the Board.

(signature of employee)

(social security no. of employee)

(date of signing)

(date of delivery to board)

## FORM B

## VOLUNTARY AUTHORIZATION FOR DEDUCTION OF SERVICE

Name	the strength of the state of the strength of t
Social Security No	and the set of the set
School or Building	······································

I authorize the Highland Park Board of Education / Board of Trustees to deduct from wages earned or to be earned by me a monthly service fee and to remit the same to the Federation at such time and in such manner as may be designated by the Chief Administrator/Business but not less than monthly.

I agree that this authorization shall remain in effect from year to year unless revoked by me in

writing to the Chief Administrator/Business and the Federation treasurer or upon the termination of my employment with the Board.

(signature of employee)

(social security no. of employee)

(date of signing)

(date of delivery to board)

(b) The following certification form shall be used by the Federation when certifying membership dues or service fee:

## CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF HIGHLAND PARK FEDERATION OF EDUCATIONAL SECRETARIES

I certify that until further notice the membership dues or service fee payable under Article 3 of the current collective bargaining agreement is \$12.50 per month for the months of October through May.

(date)

(signature of financial officer)

(date of delivery to board)

(c) Payroll deductions shall be made monthly in a manner determined by the Chief Administrator/Business provided however, the initial deduction for any employee shall not begin unless both (1) a properly executed "Voluntary Authorization for Deduction of Federation Dues" of "Voluntary Authorization for Deduction of Service Fee" and (2) the certification of the Federation's financial officer as to the amount of the monthly Federation dues of service fee has been delivered to the Employer at least fifteen calendar days prior to the first payday of the calendar month. Changes in the amount of the monthly Federation dues or service fee also must be delivered to the Employer at leas fifteen calendar days prior to the firs payday of the calendar month on which the change is to become effective.

(d) A bargaining unit employee's volun tary authorization for deduction o Federation's dues or service fee will be revoked upon his/her termination o employment with the Board or written notification from the employee to the Chie Administrator/Business; provided notice o such revocation is given to the Federation

(e) All sums deducted by the Employe shall be remitted to the financial officer o the Federation once each month by the fifteenth calendar day of the month following the month in which the deduc tions were made, together with a list of names and the amount deducted for each employee for whom a deduction was made.

(f) The Employer shall not be liable to the Federation by reason of this Article 3 for the remittance or payment of any sum other than that constituting actual deductions made from the pay earned by the employee. In addition, the Federation shall indemnify and save the Employer harmless from any liability resulting from any and all claims, demands, suits or any other action arising from compliance with this Article 3, or in reliance of any list, notice, certification or authorization furnished under this Article 3.

## 4. **RESERVATION OF RIGHTS**

The Board reserves all rights and powers conferred upon it by the Constitution and Laws of the State of Michigan except as expressly and specifically limited by this Agreement.

## 5. FAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES

(a) The Employer and the Federation recognize their respective responsibilities under federal, state, and local laws relating to fair employment practices.

(b) The Employer and the Federation recognize the moral and legal principles involved in the area of civil rights and reaffirm in this collective bargaining agreement their commitment not to discriminate because of race, creed, color, age, sex, marital status, national origin or politicial beliefs and activities, membership in any labor organization, handicapped persons, by adhering to valid equal employment opportunity, affirmative action, and Title IX rules and regulations.

## 6. ACCESS TO BOARD INFORMATION

Within 7 working days of receipt of written request from the Union, the Board will provide the Federation each fall and early spring a complete list of bargaining unit members, their seniority dates, salary level (schedule and step), and the employee's location.

The Personnel Office will inform the Federation of each employee hire or termination within ten (10) working days of the Board action.

The Board will provide the Federation with a copy of all Board minutes within five (5) days after they have been approved by the Board.

The Board shall honor reasonable requests by the Federation for financial information incident to necessary and proper union/district business (e.g. grievances).

The Board will provide the requested information within seven (7) working days of receipt of the union's written request. If the **information** is unavailable at the time of the requ**est and cannot** be supplied within seven (7) days, it shall be made available as soon thereafter as possible.

## 7. PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS

The Employer agrees to deduct from the salaries of employees when voluntarily authorized in writing by each employee:

(a) Tax deferred annuities

(b) U.S. Savings Bonds

(c) Credit union monies

(d) Insurance (where applicable)

(e) Monthly Federation dues and/or service fees

(f) Detroit income tax

All secretaries will have the opportunity to have their pay prorated over a 26-pay period, if they so desire.

Individual authorization forms shall be furnished by the appropriate organization involved and, when executed, filed individually or cooperatively with the Business Office. The Employer agrees to disburse these deductions for the purposes intended. All procedures for these payroll deductions shall be established by the Administrator in charge of Business and Finance.

#### 8. RELEASE TIME

(a) The Employer shall recognize from each segment a full-time employee of the bargaining unit to serve as a Federation representative.

#### The segments are as follows:

Central Office Highland Park Community College High School Middle School Elementary School

(b) The Employer shall recognize any authorized representative of the Federation, which is party to this agreement, for the purpose of handling grievances and other matters of this Agreement.

(c) Officials of the Federation shall be allowed release time, with pay, for official business of the International Federation, provided the employee has given his/her supervisor written notice at least ten (10) working days in advance of his/her absence from the job.

## 9. PROFESSIONAL MEETINGS, CON-FERENCES AND IN-SERVICES

(a) The Federation shall have the right to use school building facilities for Federation meetings after regular class hours provided that:

(1) Such meetings occur during the regular shift hours of the custodians for the building in question.

(2) Request is made to the principal not less than three days in advance, except in cases of unusual circumstances when this is not possible. (3) There is no conflict with other school activities which preclude Federation usage of such facilities, in which case, alternate facilities shall be made available.

(b) The Federation will be allowed at least three meetings per year to be held at 3:15 p.m. in one of the school buildings. These meetings will be held for the purpose of inservice training in October, January and April. These meetings shall be planned cooperatively by the Federation and the Administration. An additional in-service training meeting shall be called by the Federation and the Administration for updating clerical techniques. Normally this meeting will be held at a time when the school or unit is best able to cope with the loss of clerical services; in addition, if practical, a system-wide in-service will be planned for secretaries at the same time as for teaching personnel.

(c) Attendance at professional meetings is desirable to maintain and improve clerical competence and proficiency, and to enhance the educational program.

### **10. COMMUNICATIONS**

(a) Administration will provide the Federation with a copy of any items pertaining to the Federation that will appear on the Board's Agenda the Friday prior to the scheduled Board meeting, with the exception of emergency items.

(b) The Employer shall furnish the Federation quarterly a list of all employees in the bargaining unit who have been hired, rehired, promoted, transferred, reinstated, laid-off, or terminated during the quarter.

(c) Upon written request, the Federation shall be provided with a current copy of titles, office locations, and office telephone numbers and extensions of each administrator.

(d) The Employer shall supply each employee of the bargaining unit with a copy of this Agreement within thirty-five (35) working days after its ratification by both parties. After that date, each new hire, rehire or reinstated employee shall be supplied a copy of this Agreement by the Employer. The Employer shall supply the Federation with an additional fifty (50) copies of this Agreement for the Federation's own use.

#### 11. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

(a) A grievance is a complaint by a bargaining unit employee or by the Federation for an employee or in its own behalf concerning (1) any alleged violation of this Agreement; or (2) any disciplinary action.

(b) All grievances shall be handled by the following procedures: Any aggrieved secretarial or clerical employee shall have the right of Federation representation of his/her own choice in presenting his/her grievance in the following order:

STEP 1: To the immediate supervisor in writing 'and stating, in detail, the facts surrounding the grievance; and the supervisor shall respond to the grievance in writing within three (3) working days.

STEP 2: Within five (5) school days after the delivery of the immediate supervisor's decision, said grievance may be appealed to the Administrator/Personnel or Executive Vice President/Personnel after receipt of grievance. A conference shall be set up between the parties where they shall meet and confer on the grievance. The grievance must be in writing and the answer in writing within five (5) working days.

STEP 3: Within ten (10) school days after the delivery of the reply from the Administrator/Personnel, said grievance may be appealed in writing to the Superintendent/College President and the answer shall be given in writing within ten (10) working days upon receipt of appeal.

STEP 4: The Federation may appeal in writing the decision of the Superintendent/College President as provided in Step 3 above to the Board of Education within seven (7) working days. A hearing shall be scheduled at the next board meeting and the grievance heard in accordance with said schedule.

STEP 5: Within seven (7) school days after delivery of the Employer's decision, the grievance may be appealed to Arbitration by the Federation. The Arbitrator shall be selected and the arbitration shall be conducted under the rules of the American Arbitration Association. The fees and expenses of the arbitrator and of the American Arbitration Association shall be shared equally by the Employer and the Federation. The arbitrator's decision shall be final and binding on dismissal cases, any grievance dealing with financial matters (i.e.) wages, salaries, reduction or suspension with pay loss. The arbitrator shall confine his/her opinion to the sole question of whether or not there has been a violation of this agreement or whether any disciplinary action was unjust or improper.

(c) The officers of the Federation of which the employee is a member, or a committee designated by them, may have access to all papers concerned provided written permission of the individual is obtained in advance.

(d) Failure at any step of the grievance procedure to communicate the decision of the grievance within the specified time limits shall permit lodging an appeal at the next step of the procedure within the time which would have been allotted had the decision been given. Failure to file a written grievance within five (5) school days following the act or condition, which is the basis for grievance, shall bar the grievance. Failure to appeal a decision within the time limits set above shall bar further appeal. Time limits may be extended in a specific instance by mutual agreement in writing.

(e) Any party of a grievance shall have the right to representation by legal counsel at Step 4 above; provided, however, that no employee may be represented by counsel for any employee organization other than the Federation.

(f) The grievance chairperson of the Federation shall be recognized by the Board as the official representative of the Federation to receive official communications under this grievance procedure.

## 12. DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE OF NON-PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEES

No employee shall be reprimanded or disciplined in any way within sight or hearing of any other employee, citizen, or student. It is understood that the employee has the right to have a Federation representative present during any such reprimand. No employee shall be disciplined or discharged without just cause. The Employer agrees to immediately notify the Federation prior to the discharge of a nonprobationary employee. The Board agrees to maintain a progressive discipline program.

(a) The disciplined and/or discharged non-probationary employee may discuss the discipline and/or discharge with the president of the Federation or representative and the employee's supervisor or Administrator/Personnel.

(b) Appeal of Discharge and/or Discipline

In the event an employee shall be disciplined, reprimanded, suspended, or discharged by the Board or any agent or representative thereof and believes that he/she has been unjustly dealt with, a complaint shall be presented in writing through the president and/or designated Federation representative with the authorization of the executive board and/or president to the Chief Administrator/Personnel within two (2) regularly scheduled working days of the discharge. The Chief Administrator/Personnel will review the discharge and give his answer within three (3) regularly scheduled school and/or working days after receiving the complaint. If the decision is not satisfactory to the Federation, the matter may be processed through the grievance procedure beginning with Step 3 of the grievance procedure.

(c) If the employee prevails in such a grievance procedure, all records of such discipline, reprimand, suspension, or dis-

charge shall be removed from his/her personnel file as it relates to that grievance.

(d) Any employee who is reinstated after discharge or suspension which has been adjudged to have been unjust or improper shall be returned to work on his/her regular job without loss of his/her seniority rights and with full back pay.

(e) The Federation and the Board agree to assist employees in maintaining proper employee conduct and performing satisfactorily at his/her position. Therefore, the Board of Education agrees to notify the Federation of any disciplinary action, the nature of which is serious enough to warrant written record.

## 13. NEW PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEES

(a) The Federation shall represent probationary employees for the purpose of collective bargaining in respect to rates of pay, wages, hours of employment or other conditions of employment as set forth in Article 1 of this Agreement.

(b) All new employees must serve a probationary period of ninety (90) work days. This probationary period may be extended at the option of the Chief Administrator/Personnel with the consent of the employee and the union for up to one hundred and twenty (120) work days. At the end of the probationary period the new employee will either be placed in the position permanently or dismissed. The Employer shall have the right to discipline new probationary employees up to and including discharge and the disciplinary action is not subject to the grievance procedure.

#### 14. PERSONNEL FILES

(a) Personnel records are confidential and are carefully guarded in the interest of the individual employee. Although they are primarily for Administrative and supervisory use, they are accessible to the individual employees concerned. The employee must make an appointment with the Personnel Office and a member of the Personnel Office shall be present when the employee inspects said file.

(b) Each employee shall be shown and sign all "Personnel Evaluation Reports" or other evaluations of the employee's performance made by his/her supervisor. The employee shall have the right to file a written response to any much material, which shall be attached to or kept in the same file with such materials. Formal (conclusory) evaluations of bargaining unit members shall be prepared only by Administrators or Board designees who are not members of the bargaining unit. (c) Derogatory statements or reports kept by the administrators at the school or departmental level are subject to the same provisions as official personnel files.

(d) At the employee's request, the Employer shall reproduce at cost any material in his/her personnel file except confidential pre-employment credentials of an evaluative nature.

(e) All derogatory statements, reprimands, unsatisfactory ratings will be removed from employees' files in compliance with state laws.

#### 15. SENIORITY

When the word "seniority" is used, it shall mean length of service within the bargaining unit.

> (a) Seniority shall be on a bargaining unit-wide basis in accordance with the last date of hire under this Agreement. An employee rehired shall commence his/her seniority from the last date of hire. In the event two people are hired on the same date, the seniority shall be determined by the drawing of lots.

> (b) A secretary shall lose seniority for the following reasons:

(1) He/she quits.

(2) He/she is discharged and the discharge is not reversed through the

procedures set forth in this Agreement.

(3) He/she is absent for five consecutive working days without notifying the employer unless the failure to notify is caused by circumstances beyond his/her control.

(4) He/she does not return to work when recalled from layoff as set forth in the recall procedure.

(5) Failure to return from leave of absence without notification to employer will be treated the same as (3) above.

(6) He/she retires.

(c) An employee's seniority shall not be affected or interrupted as a result of layoffs, injury, illness, leaves of absences or other causes not due to the voluntary act or fault of the employee.

(d) Seniority is non-transferable from one bargaining unit to another within the School District.

(e) The employer shall within twentyfive (25) working days after the effective date of this Agreement furnish to the Federation a master list of all employees in the bargaining unit showing the seniority of each full-time employee. Such a list shall contain the name, date of employment, bargaining unit seniority date and classification of each employee in the bargaining unit. Revised master lists shall be furnished the Federation by the employer every six (6) months thereafter.

## 16. PROMOTIONS, RE-ASSIGNMENTS, TRANSFERS, VACANCIES

(a) The Federation and District agree that re-assignments and transfers of employees from one position to another may be disturbing to the individual involved. However, if it is necessary to transfer a member of the bargaining unit to another position in order to continue to serve the educational need of the children of the District of the City of Highland Park, prior to making such transfers, the matter shall be discussed by the Administrator/Personnel and the employee. The employee shall be advised of the following:

> (1) A sixty (60) calendar day probationary period shall be served for a voluntary/involuntary transfer to a higher classification.

> (2) No probationary period shall be required of an employee for an involuntary transfer to a classification on the same level.

> (3) If an employee is reassigned or transferred involuntarily and whose probationary period is unsatisfactory,

the employee shall be returned to his/her former classification.

(4) In the case of a transferred or promoted employee whose probationary period is unsatisfactory, the employee shall be returned to his/her former classification but not necessarily to the former position and appointed to the first vacancy according to his/her seniority in that classification.

(b) The Employer may relocate employees at their request when (1) there is a vacancy, and (2) it is determined by the Administrator/Personnel that the individual requesting the transfer has the necessary skills and abilities to perform the work of the new position.

(c) The Employer agrees to notify all members of the bargaining unit of any vacancy covered by this Agreement at least ten (10) days prior to a closing date established by the Personnel Division for applications. Notices should include:

(1) Job title and description

(2) Salary classification

(3) Job location

(4) Length of year

(5) Qualifications

No position shall be filled without

26

reposting, if the posting for that position is older than 30 working days.

It is the intention of the District to fill vacancies as quickly as possible. In situations where the placement procedure has not been completed, the district shall be limited to the use of temporary outside help and/or existing staff to perform the duties of the vacant position up to a maximum of sixty (60) calendar days. The Federation shall be notified prior to the temporary filling of that position.

(d) When new jobs are created or a vacancy occurs in any classification under this Agreement, first consideration shall be given to the employees presently employed by the District with the highest qualifications. In the event that it becomes necessary for a position to be phased out, notification will be given to the Federation.

(e) Employees interested in consideration for a vacancy must make written application for the position no later than the specified closing date. If the position is filled by an employee from within the Bargaining Unit, the employee's new salary shall begin on effective date of the new assignment as specified in writing by the Administrator/Personnel. The Personnel Office will notify Bargaining Unit members within ten (10) working days from the date the vacancy is filled by Board action if they are not selected for the position. Upon written request to the Personnel Office, applicants who were not selected for the position will be given the reason on which the decision was made. Application for a position shall not adversely affect an employee's status in his/her current position.

(f) The salary change resulting from a permanent or temporary change in classification shall take effect with the assumption of the duties of the new job classification.

(g) The salary change shall be to the same level of the new classification as that previously held by the employee in his/her old job classification.

(h) Should a vacancy occur in any office for 10 consecutive working days, supplemental compensation shall be paid in the following manner:

(1) The unit administrator will designate one secretary to assume the duties of the vacant position.

(2) That person shall be compensated at 30% of the hourly rate which was paid the employee that vacated the position, retroactive to the first day of that vacancy.

A vacancy will also be defined as an absence resulting from an illness of

twenty consecutive work days duration, in which case the supplemental compensation shall be retroactive to the first date of vacancy as prescribed in 1 and 2 above.

(i) The provisions of (h) 1 and 2 shall apply if:

(1) The Board eliminates a position but not the duties.

(2) If the vacancy is not part of the Bargaining Unit, the 30% shall be based on the salary of the assigned person.

(j) In the event the Board establishes a new position or substantially changes the responsibilities of an existing position, the Board shall have the right to initially establish the conditions of employment and rates of pay.

The Federation reserves the right to negotiate hours, wages, and conditions of employment if they don't agree.

## 17. LAYOFF AND RECALL

(a) When a reduction in force becomes necessary, the employer shall determine the classifications to be reduced, the number of employees in those classifications to be laid off, and the locations of the jobs to be reduced. In the application of seniority, as provided for in this Agreement, it is understood that an employee shall exercise his seniority at his location, and that any employee affected, whose seniority no longer protects him at his location shall then exercise his seniority as it applies across all locations within the recognized bargaining unit.

(1) Probationary employees in the classification affected shall be the first ones to be laid off.

(2) The least senior employees in the classifications affected shall be the next ones to be laid off.

(a) An employee, when laid off, may exercise his seniority in another classification in the same or lower salary grade, provided he has the current ability to perform satisfactorily the work that is available.

> 1. When an employee exercises his seniority in another classification, he shall replace the least senior employee in that classification whose work he/she has the current ability to perform satisfactorily. Any employee thus replaced may utilize his/her seniority to replace another employee in the same fashion.

2. An employee who exercises his seniority by replacing an employee in another classification shall not have classification seniority in that classification, but shall be entitled to hold the new position by virtue of his total seniority. He shall be required to return to his original classification when work becomes available in that classification.

3. An employee who declines to exercise his seniority in another classification shall have recall rights only in his original classification.

(b) At least thirty (30) working days prior to a layoff, the matter shall be discussed between the Assistant Superintendent Personnel/Labor Relations/Director of the Union's Personnel/College and Bargaining Committee. Any employee scheduled to be laid off shall be notified in writing by the Director of Labor Relations at least ten (10) working days in advance of the layoff. An employee's accrued vacation time shall not be used in lieu of this notice. An employee must exercise his seniority rights within five (5) working days from the date of layoff notice by notifying the Director of Labor Relations in writing of same.

(c) When full-time employees are recalled, they shall be recalled in inverse order of their placement on layoff. They shall also have the right to accept a recall to a classification in an equal or lower pay grade, consistent with their seniority and their current ability to perform satisfactorily the work that is available.

> (1) Notice of recall shall be sent to the laid-off employee at his/her last address of record by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested.

> (2) No new hires shall be made: while there is an available employee laid off who is qualified to fill the vacancy unless the employee fails to advise the Employer of his acceptance. of employment within five (5) working days after the receipt of the notification from the Employer of the available position and fails to report to work within twelve (12) working days. after said receipt. The employee may waive, in writing, recall to a classification, without loss of seniority, if he is working elsewhere and such recall is estimated by the Employer to be for less than thirty (30) working days.

## **18. WORK SCHEDULE**

(a) A work day shall consist of 7½ hours, not including lunch time. The work day schedule shall be as determined by the Administrator/Personnel and indicated in the twelve-month school calendar. All secretarial-clerical personnel will be allowed a 15-minute relief period in both the morning and afternoon whenever it is possible to arrange with their immediate supervisor.

(b) All secretarial-clerical personnel are employed either 42, 46 or 52 calendar weeks. The work year of 52-week employees is from July 1 through June 30. The work year of 42-week employees is defined as follows:

> (1) The work year of the 42-week employee is the regular school calendar for teachers plus 10 working days. This normally means that a 42-week secretary reports to work 5 days prior to the beginning day for teachers and is required to work 5 days following the last day of school or work for teachers.

> (2) The work year of the 46-week employee is the regular school calendar for teachers plus 30 working days. This normally means that a 46-week secretary reports to work 15 days prior to the beginning day for

teachers and is required to work for 15 days following the last day of school or work for teachers. During the regular school year the total work days shall be the same as the 42-week employee.

(3) Assignment of working schedule affecting those 10 and 30 working days is subject to assignment or approval by the Administrator/Personnel.

(4) At the close of each school year or Federal Project, each 42-week employee or federally-funded employee will be given notification indicating whether or not they are to return to work the forthcoming Fall. Employees to be laid off will be given reasonable notice prior to the date of each intended layoff.

(c) The regular work week shall be considered  $37\frac{1}{2}$  hours.

(d) The work week during the summer months shall be 35 hours beginning with the Monday following the last day of work for the 42-week employee work schedule and ending the Friday prior to the first day of work of the 42 week employee work schedule.

(e) It is a policy of the Employer to keep overtime at a minimum. Pay for emergency overtime authorized by the immediate
supervisor and approved by the Administrator/Personnel shall be at time and a half for the hours in excess of 40 hours in any work week.

(f) A written notice of resignation shall be filed with the Administrator/Personnel at least two weeks prior to the date of leaving.

(g) Unexcused absences immediately prior to or following a holiday or vacation period shall result in a loss of pay.

(h) A maximum of three years experience credit on the salary schedule may be granted if a new employee has had work experience directly related to the job classification. The granting of this experience credit shall be at the discretion of the Superintendent/President or his/her designated representative.

(i) A new hire will be advanced as follows:

(1) A new hire placed on Level I, II or III will be advanced to the next Level following the successful completion of probation, and will remain on that Level for a minimum period of six (6) months.

(2) After completion of probation, to be followed by a minimum of six (6) months as a regular employee, said employee will move to the next Level on either the next July 1, or the next January, whichever comes first after the minimum of six (6) months as a regular employee, provided that the Level change is negotiated for all employees by the Federation.

(a) An employee hired March 2, 1979, on Level II, would be advanced to Level III on July 10, 1979, following the successful completion of a ninety (90) work day probationary period, if the probationary period has not been extended. Said employee will remain on Level III, until July 1, 1980 and would advance in Level, if negotiated by the Federation for all employees.

(b) An employee hired September 4, 1979, on Level I would be advanced to Level II on January 15, 1980, following the successful completion of a ninety (90) work day probationary period, if the probationary period has not been extended. Said employee will remain on Level II, until January 1, 1981, and would advance to Level III on January 1, 1981, provided that an advance in Level is negotiated by the Federation for all employees for the 1981-82 school year.

(j) In the interest of the security of

employees. no employee shall be required to work alone in any building without another employee present.

## **19. SICK LEAVE**

(a) At the time of initial employment, each employee in the bargaining unit shall have ten (10) days of sick leave privilege to be used as necessary during the school year. If the time of initial employment is other than the beginning of a school year, the sick leave privilege will be prorated in terms of the time remaining in the school year.

(b) After one (1) school year and through the fifth (5th) school year of continuous service in the Highland Park Schools, each employee in the bargaining unit shall have a total of forty (40) days of sick leave available at the beginning of each school year, except as hereinafter provided.

(c) After five (5) school years of continuous service in the Highland Park Schools and each year through the tenth (10th) school year of such employment, each employee in the bargaining unit shall have a total of seventy (70) days of sick leave available at the beginning of each school year, except as hereinafter provided.

(d) After ten (10) or more school years of continuous service in Highland Park Schools, each employee in the bargaining unit shall have a total of one hundred (100) days of sick leave available at the beginning of each school year, except as hereinafter provided.

(e) If an employee is unable to resume his/her assigned duties after his/her sick leave entitlement expires, he/she shall be placed on leave without pay and may continue on such leave for a period not to exceed one year. If, at the end of one year on such leave without pay, he/she is unable to resume his/her assigned duties, his/her employment will terminate. However, if at some later time the employee is deemed able to resume employment, he/she will rank first for consideration among candidates for any position for which he/she is qualified and, upon re-employment, shall receive rights and benefits commensurate with those available to him/her at the time of his/her incapacitation.

Under provisions of (b), (c) and (d) above, if, at some time during the year in which he/she is on leave without pay, the employee is deemed able to resume his/her assigned duties, he/she will, for the remainder of the work-year in which he/she resumes his/her assigned duties, be entitled to 10 days of sick leave and, at the beginning of the next work-year, he/she again will have available the full sick leave to which his/her years of service entitle him/her. (f) It shall be the prerogative of the Employer to evaluate the sick leave record and to judge the advisability of continuing further sick leave entitlement to any employee whose state of health is such as to necessitate the use of a major portion of sick leave entitlement in two (2) successive years.

(g) An employee in the bargaining unit will not be permitted to return to his/her assignment without permission of the Superintendent/President if it is necessary for him/her to use crutches, or if portions of his/her body are encumbered by bandages or in slings, or if the condition of his/her body is such as to be deemed hazardous to his/her personal welfare and safety.

(h) A person who concludes a work year on sick leave and who is unable to resume his/her assigned duties at the beginning of the next work year, will be continued on sick leave into the new work year for a period of time equal to the remainder of sick leave unused at the end of the previous work year.

(i) An employee who has been absent ten (10) or more consecutive work days because of illness shall, upon his/her return and before resuming his/her assigned duties, furnish to the administrator in charge of Personnel a certification of fitness to resume his/her normal duties. Such certification shall be signed by a competent physician of the employee's own choice, shall state the nature of the illness or injury, and shall certify that the employee is fit and able to resume his/her assigned duties.

(i) Sick leave is to be utilized for the purpose intended and shall not be abused. The Employer shall have the right, at its own expense, to have employees on sick leave or with records that suggest possible abuse examined at such times and intervals as the Employer shall determine. If the opinion of the Board's medical advisor is in conflict with the opinion of the employee's physician regarding the date on which the employee may resume his/her regular duties, the conflict shall be resolved by submitting the dispute to a third, neutral physician (mutually agreed upon by the Board's physician and the employee's physician) whose opinion shall be binding on both parties. If it is determined after examination that an employee on sick leave is not sick, in fact, all sick leave for such employee shall terminate, forthwith, and the employee shall be subject to disciplinary action.

Medical expenses for the Board's physician and the neutral physician incidental to physical examinations resorted to in resolving such question will be borne by the School District. Medical expenses for the employee's physician shall be borne by the employee.

# 20. WORKERS' COMPENSATION

An employee in the bargaining unit sustaining injury or occupational disease arising out of and in the course of employment by the Employer shall be continued on the payroll to the extent of his/her sick leave reserve: provided that where he/she receives income under the Michigan Workers' Compensation Act, such income shall be supplemented by the employer with an amount sufficient to maintain his/her regular salary for a period not to exceed his/her sick leave reserve, and such reserve shall be charged only for that portion in excess of the compensation payment.

### 21. ILLNESS OR DEATH IN THE IMMEDIATE FAMILY

An employee in the bargaining unit shall be allowed five (5) working days annually as leave days not to be deducted from sick leave for illness or death in the employee's immediate family. Immediate family is to be defined as follows: mother, father, sister, brother, spouse, son, daughter, mother-in-law and father-in-law. The Superintendent/President may extend this definition upon application in unusual cases.

# 22. PERSONAL BUSINESS LEAVE

(a) A staff member may be allowed absences, with pay, totaling not more than five (5) days within each work year for personal or private business, provided such leave is necessary and is for a reason beyond the control of the individual requesting it.

(b) Except in cases of emergency, personal business leave with pay will not be granted in the week prior to or the week following a vacation period, or in the first or last week of the school year.

(c) Examples of allowable reasons for absence considered personal and private:

(1) Required appearance in a court of law involving no moral turpitude on the part of the employee.

(2) Presence required by Department of Internal Revenue.

(3) Unusual circumstances which may be considered on their merits by the Superintendent of Schools.

(d) Except in cases where extreme emergency circumstances prevent, approval of personal business leave must be obtained in advance of the absence. A written request, including circumstances, for personal business leave, shall be originated prior to the time leave is requested and shall be submitted to the principal or supervising administrator who will acknowledge the request and forward it to the Administrator in charge of Personnel for approval or disapproval.

Except in case of extreme emergency, failure to submit a written request for

personal business leave and to have such leave approved in advance will result in forfeiture of pay for the absence.

## 23. LEAVE WITHOUT PAY

(a) Personal Leave of Absence without Pay

(1) Any non-probationary person who has been employed by the Board of Education for a minimum period of three (3) consecutive years shall, on written request, be allowed a personal leave without pay, for a good and sufficient reason, provided it does not in any way injure the school program. Such leave may be for one-half of a work year or a maximum of one full year. Applications for personal leave of absence must be submitted by March 1, for leaves beginning the first half of the work year and by October 15. for leaves beginning the second half of the work year. Provided, any person who has exhausted his/her sick leave with pay and is not able to resume full employment shall be eligible to make a written request for personal leave without pay for a period of estimated time not to exceed the current school year within 20 work days after the depletion of the leave bank. Failure to file such a request shall be considered as intent of the employee not to seek further employment in the school system.

(2) Personal Leave of Absence to take other employment will not be granted except as specifically stated in other parts of this Agreement.

(3) If, at the expiration of the personal leave, a person wishes to resume employment with the School District it shall be his/her responsibility to initiate a request on or before the above dates as listed in item (1) above of the year preceding the expected resumption of employment. Failure to initiate such a request by the above dates of the year specified will indicate a lack of intent to resume employment with the School District.

(4) Personal leave of absence may be extended for a maximum of one additional year beyond the original request.

(5) Persons returning from a personal leave of absence shall be considered first on the list of qualified candidates when a position is open requiring a person with his/her qualifications.

(6) Upon return from a personal leave without pay, the employee shall be placed on the salary schedule level for which he/she was eligible when employee left for said leave.

#### (b) Military Leave

An employee in the bargaining unit who may enlist, be drafted or be recalled into active duty of any branch of the United States Armed Forces, shall make application in writing for military leave. All aspects of military leave and return therefrom will be governed by applicable provisions of state and federal laws in effect at the time in question.

(c) Maternity Leaves of Absence

(1) The Board of Education shall grant a leave of absence without pay for maternity upon written request for such leave by the employee and certification of pregnancy by the employee's physician. Such leaves will be counted as credit levels on any salary schedule.

(2) The employee shall notify the Administrator in charge of Personnel by a written statement from her physician as soon as pregnancy has definitely been determined. The physician's statement must specify the date until which, in the physician's opinion, the employee can continue full-time employment in her position without either (a) danger to the employee's health or that of the child, or (b) impairment in any of the employee's ability to perform her duties. (3) The effective date of separation for maternity reasons shall be the date specified by the employee's physician as described in subsection (2) above.

(4) Within two weeks after delivery, the employee shall provide the Administrator in charge of Personnel with a statement from her physician specifying the date when, so far as the health of the employee herself is concerned and without respect to any aspect of care and feeding of the child, the employee is able to resume fulltime employment in her former position without danger to the employee's health and without impairment in any way of the employee's ability to perform her duties.

(5) The date of resumption of employment in her position shall be the date specified by the employee's physician as described in sub-section (4) above.

(6) The employee may apply sick leave to her maternity leave, up to the full extent of that employee's sick leave available under the provisions of this agreement.

(7) The Board reserves the right, at its option and expense, to have the employee examined by a physician designated by the Board with respect to the proper ending date of the leave as set forth in sub-section (4) above. The employee will make herself aviailable for such examination and will cooperate in furnishing any necessary information in connection therewith. The Board-designated physician will provide the Board and the employee with a statement specifying the same information as that required from the employee's physician as described in sub-section (4) above. In the event of conflict it shall be resolved by submitting the dispute to a third neutral physician (mutually agreed upon by the Board's physician and the employee's physician) whose opinion shall be binding on both parties.

(8) It is agreed that the failure of any employee to comply with any of the foregoing requirements shall be just cause for termination of her services.

(d) Child Care Leave of Absence

(1) The Board of Education shall grant a leave of absence without pay for care of an employee's new-born child upon written request for such leave by the employee, and certification of the birth by the employee's physician. Such will not be counted as credit toward levels on any salary schedule.

(2) The request for child care leave shall be submitted at the same time as the request for maternity leave described in Section 23 (c) above. The child care leave will begin at the date of expiration of maternity leave as described in Section 23 (c) above, and will end, at the employee's option, at the beginning of either the first or second school year following expiration of the maternity leave, and at no other time.

**EXAMPLES:** 

a. Child born April 1, 1979. Maternity leave expires April 15, 1979. Child care leave expires, at employee's option, either at beginning of 1979-80 school year or at the beginning of 1980-81 school year.

b. Child born October 15, 1979. Maternity leave expires October 29, 1979. Child care leave expires, at employee's option, either at beginning of 1980-81 school year or at beginning of 1981-82 school year.

(3) Upon expiration of child care leave, the employee will be given preference for hiring in any vacant position for which the employee is qualified, provided the employee has submitted a written request for resumption of employment at least 120 days prior to the leave ending date. If no such written and timely request is submitted, the employee will be considered to have resigned. If there is no vacant position for which the employee is qualified at the time of the leave ending date, the employee will continue to have preference for any such vacancy which may occur for a period of one year from the leave ending date, after which all rights to preference shall cease.

(4) In cases of maternity and/or child care leave where the employee has sick leave days available and sick days are used for maternity leave as provided in sub-section (6), the Board will pay any insurance premiums falling due prior to exhaustion of the employee's sick leave days. Otherwise, the Board shall have no responsibility for payment of insurance premiums during maternity leave (or during child care leave), but the Board will permit any employee who desires to do so to continue insurance coverage during maternity leave or child care leave by paying the necessary premiums to the Board prior to the premium due dates.

# 24. VACATIONS – 12-MONTH EMPLOYEES

(a) Vacation will be granted to 12-month employees by the Employer at such times during the year as are suitable considering both the wishes of employees and efficiency of the operation of the department concerned.

(b) Vacation will be granted to 12-month employees by the Employer as indicated by the following schedules:

6 mos 1 year		1 year to 5 years		5 years to 10 years
5 days	· This sector	10 days +		15 days °
10 years 15 years		-	15 yea Above	
	20 days ++	No. Xal	25 day	s **

(Days are defined as working days)

Provided the six months shall have been served by July 1 of the school year in which the vacation is allowable.

Provided the full year shall have been served by July 1 of the school year in which the vacation is allowable. Provided the five years shall have been served by July 1 of the school year in which the vacation is allowable.

++ Provided the ten years shall have been served by July 1 of the school year in which the vacation is allowable.

0

\* \*

Provided the fifteen years shall have been served by July 1 of the school year in which the vacation is allowable.

(c) On July 1 of each school year vacations will be granted for service performed during the preceding school year. All vacation time so granted must be used during the following school year and cannot be carried over into the succeeding year.

(d) Vacation may be split into one or more weeks, or one day at a time, providing such scheduling does not interfere with the operation of the department concerned.

(e) When a holiday is observed by the employer during a scheduled vacation, the vacation will be extended one day continuous with the vacation.

(f) Illness incurred during vacation will not be charged to sick leave but to vacation time. Unusual circumstances may be reviewed by the Superintendent/President.

(g) All vacations must be taken at a time recommended by the immediate supervisor and approved by the Administrator/Personnel. The time of vacations shall be that best suited for the continued operation of the school system.

(h) Extension of the time beyond the entitled vacation period must be requested in advance, recommended by the immediate supervisor and approved by the Administrator/Personnel, shall be taken at the individual's own expense, and shall not be drawn from personal business, vacation, sick leave, or any other paid leave time.

(i) If an employee is absent 26% or more of any work year, a corresponding percentage of vacation time shall be deducted.

(j) If a regular pay day falls during an employee's vacation, he will receive that check in advance upon three weeks written notice before going on vacation.

(k) Rate during vacation: Employees will be paid their current rate while on vacation, excluding overtime, and will receive credit for any benefits provided for in this Agreement.

(1) Years of experience in 42 or 46-week positions will count toward vacation granted when an employee acquires a 52week position.

(m) In the event an employee's probationary period is completed between July 1 and August 15, they shall be granted one week vacation that may be used following; their 6-month **anniversary date** and September 1. If the probationary period ends after August 15, they shall be granted one week vacation that may be used during the Christmas or Easter school recess. In the event an employee used the one week granted under this Article after the 6-month anniversary date, they shall be granted only one additional week on the succeeding July 1. If an employee qualifying for vacation under this Article does not use this one week vacation as described above, they shall be granted two weeks' vacation on the succeeding July 1.

(n) In the event of death of an employee, any unused vacation will be paid to his/her estate.

(o) Vacation days shall be taken in fiscal year following that in which they were earned and shall not be accumulated.

(p) All vacation days must be scheduled with approval of Supervisor and Administrator/Personnel.

(q) Should an employee be denied the right to take his/her vacation as described in (p) above and this denial resulted from the Administrator/Personnel non-approval of his/her request, then the employee shall be entitled to be compensated at his/her salary rate for all vacation days unused as a result of said denial.

#### 25. PAID HOLIDAYS

Employees in the bargaining unit will have the

following paid holidays:

(1) Day before or after New Year's Day
(2) New Year's Day
(3)Black Heritage Day (when included in teacher's contract)
(4) Good Friday
(5) Memorial Day
(6) Fourth of July
(7) Labor Day
(8) Thanksgiving Day
(9) Day after Thanksgiving Day

(10) Day before or after Christmas

(11) Christmas

### 26. BULLETIN BOARDS

The Employer will provide bulletin board space in each building which may be used by the Federation for posting notices.

### 27. NEW CLASSIFICATION

The Board recognizes that the alteration of existing classifications, or the establishment of new classifications, is a subject for discussion under the contract implementation procedures (section 29).

#### 28. JURY DUTY

In situations arising from the calling of an employee for duty, the employee shall ask the administrator in charge to request an excuse or deferment from such duty. A full-time employee called for jury duty shall be granted a leave of absence for the duration of that duty. The Employer shall be obligated only to pay an amount equal to the difference between the employee's salary as computed on a daily basis and the daily jury duty fee paid.

### 29. CONTRACT IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURES

(1) Agreement Implementation meetings shall be held between representatives of the Board and the Federation negotiating teams on a regularly scheduled basis, if requested, with a minimum of one per month.

(2) The purpose of these meetings will be to review the administration of the contract and resolve any problems that are not of a grievance nature. It is intended that these meetings will produce a high level of mutual understanding and that problems will be resolved on an equitable basis.

(3) All meetings between the parties regularly scheduled should take place as promptly as possible at a time when the office personnel involved are free from assigned responsibilities unless otherwise requested by either the Federation or the Board. Meetings will be scheduled within ten (10) days at the request of either party.

(4) When a mutually acceptable amendment of the agreement results, it will only become valid when ratified by the Board and the Federation.

30. MEDICAL COVERAGE AND OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS

> (a) Bargaining unit members may elect either the Blue Cross-Blue Shield MVF-1 plan of hospital-medical-surgical insurance, including Master Medical (option 4) and prescription drug coverage as described in the brochure furnished to the Federation or equivalent coverage under Community Health Association, Medical Laboratory Coverage, and First Aid Emergency Coverage.

For the duration of this Agreement, the Board agrees to pay the full premium for employee and dependents semi-private coverage under either of said plans for all bargaining unit members who enroll, but not exceeding the cost of employee and dependents semi-private coverage under the Blue Cross-Blue Shield plan. Commencement and duration of coverage and amount and nature of benefits will be governed by the rules and regulations of the carrier. The Board's only responsibility shall be for payment of premiums as above set forth.

(b) The Board of Education shall pay the premium necessary to provide without cost to the members of the bargaining unit group life insurance protection which pay to the member's designated beneficiary the sum of \$18,000 upon death and \$18,000 for accidental death and dismemberment. The nature and amount of benefits and commencement and duration of coverage shall be as specified in the master insurance premiums as above specified.

(c) College Tuition

All full-time members of the bargaining unit and their spouses and children shall be allowed to take courses at the college for credit without payment of tuition. Such persons shall not be counted in determining the minimum number of students required to warrant conducting a class.

(d) Effective January 1, 1979, the Board will provide dental coverage - Delta Dental Plan with coordination of benefits.

For the duration of this Agreement, the Board agrees to pay for full premium for employees and dependents; a dental insurance package which shall be:

1. Seventy-five (75%) of Class I benefits;

- (a) Basic services
- (b) Preventive services
- (c) Restorative services
- (d) Oral Surgery services
- (e) Endodontic services
- (f) Peridontic services
- 2. Fifty percent (50%) of Class II

#### Benefits:

### (a) Prosthodontic services

It is understood that a dental plan coverage shall be indentical or superior to the plans and services of the Delta Dental Plan proposed at the bargaining table. A plan shall be purchased for each individual regardless of marital status. Employees with coverage under external plans inferior to the above plan shall not be excluded.

(e) The Board will provide optical coverage for all bargaining unit members.

# 31. TUBERCULOSIS EXAMINATIONS

Members of the secretarial-clerical staff are required to file proof of freedom from active tuberculosis annually, in the form of a certificate showing negative result from either a chest xray or a tuberculin skin test. The certificate must be filed within fourteen days after the first day of regular school sessions in the fall, and the chest x-ray or skin test must have been performed within nine months preceding the first day of regular school sessions in the fall.

The Employer agrees to exert every effort to arrange for a mobil x-ray unit to visit Highland Park at a date or dates which will provide all **employees with** an opportunity to have chest xrays conveniently and free of charge. The Employer will also provide **arrangements** for employees who prefer the tuberculin skin test to procure same at a location in Highland Park free of charge (i.e., D.O.H., Highland Park Health Department, etc.).

## 32. OTHER PHYSICAL EXAMINATIONS, NERVOUS DISORDER

Any question as to the physical health and fitness of an employee shall be resolved by the Administrator/Personnel and the individual, in conference with the school medical advisor. Medical expenses incidental to physical examinations resorted to in resolving such questions will be borne by the employer.

#### Nervous Disorder

An employee who has been absent, or whose performance has been impaired, because of nervous disorder must, prior to his/her return, present a report from a physician showing satisfactory recovery. The employee's cooperation in obtaining a medical report from an impartial clinic may be a required development. In the latter case, expenses incurred shall be borne by the Employer.

### 33. TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT OR RESIGNATIONS

A person who has resigned or whose employment is terminated for any reason forfeits all accrued rights and privileges, including sick leave, military leave, personal leave without pay, Workers' Compensation within the Michigan state law, and any other rights and privileges which may have been granted by the Employer to its employees.

> (a) Any employee desiring to resign shall file a letter of resignation with the Personnel Office at least two (2) weeks

prior to the effective date.

(b) Any employee who discontinues his/her service in accordance with the provisions of (a) above does not forfeit his/her right to be paid for earned vacation time.

(c) If an employee is terminated or resigns, his/her vacation days will be prorated and included in his/her severance pay.

### 34. EMPLOYEES HIRED FOR SPECIAL PROJECTS FUNDED BY FEDERAL OR STATE GOVERNMENTS

It is understood that employees hired for a special project funded by the federal or state government will be retained only for the duration of the project and the Employer shall have no obligation to reemploy them. However, at the end of the project, if a position is available, consideration will be given.

### 35. NO STRIKE

The Federation fully recognizes that the statutes of the State of Michigan confer upon public employees and their organizations not only certain rights and privileges but also certain duties and responsibilities, the latter including particularly the duty to maintain and continue the functions of government, in this case the operation of the public schools, without interruption or interference due to strikes. Accordingly, the Federation agrees, on behalf of itself and all those whom it represents, that the no strike provisions of the Public Employment Relations Act (ACT 336 of 1947, as amended) will be faithfully observed at all times.

### 36. APPENDIX

The following appendix is incorporated and makes a part of this Agreement:

Appendix A - rates of Pay and Implementation of Salary Schedule

# **37. RATIFICATION**

The Board and the Federation will submit this Agreement through their ordinary ratification procedures. Both parties agree to actively recommend its ratification.

### 38. DURATION

This Agreement shall become effective July 1, 1980, and shall continue in full force and effect until midnight June 30, 1983.

The Board and the Federation agree, at the request of either party, that salary and fringe benefits will be renegotiated for the 1982-83 school year providing either party requests such negotiations not less than ninety (90) days prior to the end of the 1981-82 contract year.

If either party desires to modify this Contract, it shall give written notice sixty (60) days prior to termination. Negotiations for a new contract shall commence thirty (30) days after that date. In the event that the School District and the Union fail to arrive at an agreement by June 30, 1983, this contract will remain in effect on a dayto-day basis. Either party may terminate the agreement by giving the other party a ten day written notice on or after June 20, 1983.

### PRINTING OF AGREEMENT

Copies of this Agreement shall be printed within thirty-five (35) days after ratification by all parties, at the expense of the Board, and presented to all present employees and future employees.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement by their duly authorized representatives on this day of 1980.

BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK

resident of the Board Superintendent of

HIGHLAND PARK FEDERATION OF EDUCATIONAL SECRETARIES

10 neta Materhans

President

### **NEGOTIATING COMMITTEE:**

the last m.Laill Theman

#### APPENDIX "A" SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF HIGHLAND PA SECRETARIAL-CLERICAL SALARY SCHEDULE FOR 42-WEEK ASSIGNMENTS 1980-81

JOB CLASSIFICATION	RANGE	LEVEL
Admin, Secretary III	ann an	\$5.50
THURSDAY AND	26	\$8,869
Admin. Secretary II	23.	\$5.25
Bookroom Supervisor		\$8,46
Admin. Secretary I	22	\$4.99
Asst. Bookstore Mgr. Bursar-Cashier		\$8,04
Fringe Benefits		
Sr. Payroll Clerk Receptionist		
Business Office Clerk	21	\$4.88
Payroll Clerk Secretary III		\$7,86
Sr. Accts. Payable		
Substitute Secretary		
Accts. Payable Clerk	20	\$4.75
Library Assistant		\$7,65
Offset Prod. Spec.		
Records Clerk, II Adm/Rec		
Secretary II	18	\$4.55
		\$7,33
Library Aide	16	\$4.31
Print Prod. Clerk		\$6,95
Secretary I 62		

VEL 2	LEVEL 3	LEVEL 4	LEVEL 5	LEVEL 6
5.73	\$5.98	\$6.26	\$6.56	\$7.49
,240	\$9,643	\$10,094	\$10,578	\$12,078
5.32	\$5.59	\$5.83	\$6.12	\$6.99
,579	\$9,014	\$9,401	\$9,869	\$11,271
5.22	\$5.46	\$5.72	\$5.96	\$6.80
,417	\$8,804	\$9,224	\$9,611	\$10,965

5.08	\$5.31	\$5.56	\$5.81	\$6.65
,192	\$8,562	\$8,966	\$9,369	\$10,723
1.96	\$5.17	\$5.43	\$5.68	\$6.50
,998	\$8,337	\$8,756	\$9,159	\$10,481
1.70	\$4.95	\$5.16	\$5.42	\$6.19
,579	\$7,982	\$8,321	\$8,740	\$9,981
1.53	\$4.72	\$4.94	\$5.15	\$5.91
,305	\$7,611	\$7,966	\$8,304	\$9,530
		63		



#### Hourly rate: Based on 71/2-hour work day.

The preceding salary schedule will contain three longevity steps after ten, fifteen, and twenty years. Longevity payments will not be prorated according to number of weeks worked. Longevity payment will be paid once a year, on or before December 15.

# 10 years - \$300, 15 years - \$500, 20 years - \$700

Any employee who has completed their tenth, fifteenth, or twentieth year with the School District on or before December 15th qualifies for their respective longevity payments.

An employee who was on Level 6 on June 30, 1980 is entitled to a 2.5% Service Credit Check (based upon their 1979-80 salary) to be paid by the 2nd pay period in September, 1980 in a separate check, (one time only)

Total Hours: 16121/2

#### APPENDIX "A"

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF HIGHLAND PARI SECRETARIAL-CLERICAL SALARY SCHEDULE FOR 46-WEEK ASSIGNMENTS

RANGE	LEVEL I
RANGE	and the second second second second
and are of	\$5.50
26	\$9,441
23	\$5.25
	\$9,012
22	\$4.99
	\$8,565
21	\$4.88
	\$8,377
20	\$4.75
	\$8,153
18	\$4.55
	\$7,810
16	\$4.31
R. Phan	\$7,398
	26 23 22 21 20 18

65

EVEL 2	LEVEL 3	LEVEL 4	LEVEL 5	LEVEL 6
5.73	\$5.98	\$6.26	\$6.56	\$7.49
9,836	\$10,265	\$10,745	\$11,260	\$12,857
\$5.32	\$5.59	\$5.83	\$6.12	\$6.99
9,132	\$9,595	\$10,007	\$10,505	\$11,998
\$5.22	\$5.46	\$5.72	\$5.96	\$6.80
8,960	\$9,372	\$9,818	\$10,230	\$11,672
\$5.08	\$5.31	\$5.56	\$5.81	\$6.65
58,720	\$9,115	\$9,544	\$9,973	\$11,415
		<b>6 6 1 2</b>	<b><i><b>f</b></i>f</b>	¢ ( 50
\$4.96 58,514	\$5.17 \$8,874	\$5.43 \$9,321	\$5.68 \$9,750	\$6.50 \$11,157
\$4.70	\$4.95	\$5.16	\$5.42	\$6.19
68,068	\$8,497	\$8,857	\$9,303	\$10,625
\$4.53	\$4.72	\$4.94	\$5.15	\$5.91
7,776	\$8,102	\$8,480	\$8,840	\$10,145
		66		


The preceding salary schedule will contain three longevity steps after ten, fifteen, and twenty years. Longevity payments will not be prorated according to number of weeks worked. Longevity payment will be paid once a year, on or before December 15.

10 years - \$300, 15 years - \$500, 20 years - \$700.

Any employee who has completed their tenth, fifteenth, or twentieth year with the School District on or before December 15th qualifies for their respective longevity payments.

An employee who was on Level 6 on June 30, 1980 is entitled to a 2.5% Service Credit Check (based upon their 1979-80 salary) to be paid by the 2nd pay period in September, 1980 in a separate check.

Total Hours: 17161/2

## **APPENDIX "A"**

## SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK SECRETARIAL-CLERICAL SALARY SCHEDULE FOR 52-WEEK ASSIGNMENTS

JOB CLASSIFICATION	RANGE	LEVEL 1
Admin. Secretary III		\$5.50
	26	\$10,725
Admin. Secretary II	23	\$5.25
Bookroom Supervisor		\$10,238
Admin. Secretary I	22	\$4.99
Asst. Bookstore Mgr.		\$9,731
Bursar-Cashier		
Fringe Benefits		
Sr. Payroll Clerk		
Receptionist		
Business Office Clerk	21	\$4.88
Payroll Clerk		\$9,516
Secretary III		
Sr. Accts. Payable		
Substitute Secretary		
Accts. Payable Clerk	20	\$4.75
Library Assistant		\$9,263
Offset Prod. Spec.		
Records Clerk, II Adm/Rec		
Secretary II	18	\$4.55
		\$8,873
Library Aide	16	\$4.31
Print Prod. Clerk		\$8,405
Secretary I 68		

EVEL 2	LEVEL 3	LEVEL 4	LEVEL 5	LEVEL 6
5.73	\$5.98	\$6.26	\$6.56	\$7.49
1,174	\$11,661	\$12,207	\$12,792	\$14,606
5.32	\$5.59	\$5.83	\$6.12	\$6.99
0,374	\$10,901	\$11,369	\$11,934	\$13,631
5.22	\$5.46	\$5.72	\$5.96	\$6.80
0,179	\$10,647	\$11,154	\$11,622	\$13,260
5.08	\$5.31	\$5.56	\$5.81	\$6.65
9,906	\$10,355	\$10,842	\$11,330	\$12,968
4.96	\$5.17	\$5.43	\$5.68	\$6.50
9,672	\$10,082	\$10,589	\$11,076	\$12,675
1.10				
4.70	\$4.95	\$5.16	\$5.42	\$6.19
,165	\$9,653	\$10,062	\$10,569	\$12,071
4.53	\$4.72	\$4.94	\$5.15	\$5.91
,834	\$9,204	\$9,633	\$10,043	\$11,525
		69		



The preceding salary schedule will contain three longevity steps after ten, fifteen, and twenty years. Longevity payments will not be prorated according to number of weeks worked. Longevity payment will be paid once a year, on or before December 15.

10 years - \$300, 15 years - \$500, 20 years - \$700

Any employee who has completed their tenth, fifteenth, or twentieth year with the School District on or before December 15th qualifies for their respective longevity payments.

An employee who was on Level 6 on June 30, 1980 is entitled to a 2.5% Service Credit Check (based upon their 1979-80 salary) to be paid by the 2nd pay period in September, 1980 in a separate check.

## APPENDIX "A" SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK SECRETARIAL-CLERICAL SALARY SCHEDULE FOR 42-WEEK ASSIGNMENTS

JOB CLASSIFICATION	RANGE	LEVEL 1
Admin. Secretary III		\$5.94
	26	\$9,578
Admin. Secretary II	23	\$5.67
Bookroom Supervisor		\$9,143
Admin. Secretary I	22	\$5.39
Asst. Bookstore Mgr. Bursar-Cashier		\$8,691
Fringe Benefits		
Sr. Payroll Clerk		
Receptionist		
Business Office Clerk	21	\$5.27
Payroll Clerk	Jacks may	\$8,498
Secretary III		
Sr. Accts. Payable		
Substitute Secretary		
Accts. Payable Clerk	20	\$5.13
Library Assistant	3 15 -1	\$8,272
Offset Prod. Spec.		
Records Clerk, II Adm/Rec		
Secretary II	18	\$4.91
		\$7,917
Library Aide	16	\$4.65
Print Prod. Clerk		\$7,498
Secretary I 71		

EVEL 2 LEVEL 3		LEVEL 4	LEVEL 5	LEVEL 6
6.19	\$6.46	\$6.76	\$7.08	\$8.09
9,981	\$10,417	\$10,901	\$11,417	\$13,045
5.75	\$6.04	\$6.30	\$6.6\$	\$7.55
9,272	\$9,740	\$10,\$57	\$10,659	\$12,174
5.64	\$5.90	\$6.18	\$6.44	\$7.34
,095	\$9,514	\$9,965	\$10,385	\$11,836

5.49	\$5.73	\$6.00	\$6.27	\$7.18	
,853	\$9,240	\$9,675 \$10,110			
5.36	\$5.58	\$5.86	\$6.13	\$7.02	
,643	\$8,998	\$9,449 \$9,885		\$11,320	
5.08	\$5.35	\$5.57	\$5.85	\$6.69	
,192	\$8,627	\$8,982	\$9,433	\$10,788	
1.89	\$5.10	\$5.34	\$5.56	\$6.38	
,885	\$8,224	\$8,611	\$8,966	\$10,288	
		72			



The preceding salary schedule will contain three longevity steps after ten, fifteen, and twenty years. Longevity payments will not be prorated according to number of weeks worked. Longevity payment will be paid once a year, on or before December 15.

## 10 years - \$300, 15 years - \$500, 20 years - \$700

Any employee who has completed their tenth, fifteenth, or twentieth year with the School District on or before December 15th qualifies for their respective longevity payments.

An employee who was on Level 6 on June 30, 1980 is entitled to a 2.5% Service Credit Check (based upon their 1979-80 salary) to be paid by the 2nd pay period in September, 1980 in a separate check.

Total Hours: 16121/2

### APPENDIX "A" SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK SECRETARIAL-CLERICAL SALARY SCHEDULE FOR 46-WEEK ASSIGNMENTS

JOB CLASSIFICATION	RANGE	LEVEL 1
Admin. Secretary III	Contraction of the second	\$5.94
	26	\$10,196
Admin. Secretary II	23	\$5.67
Bookroom Supervisor		\$9,733
Admin. Secretary I	22	\$5.39
Asst. Bookstore Mgr.		\$9,252
Bursar-Cashier		L ANDER
Fringe Benefits		
Sr. Payroll Clerk		1
Receptionist		
Business Office Clerk	21	\$5.27
Payroll Clerk		\$9,046
Secretary III		
Sr. Accts. Payable		
Substitute Secretary		
Accts. Payable Clerk	20	\$5.13
Library Assistant		\$8,806
Offset Prod. Spec.		E 14"
Records Clerk, II Adm/Rec		
Secretary II	18	\$4.91
		\$8,428
Library Aide	16	\$4.65
Print Prod. Clerk		\$7,982
Secretary I 74		200 - C
/*		

VEL 2	LEVEL 3	LEVEL 5	5 LEVEL 6	
.19	\$6.46	\$6.76	\$7.08	\$8.09
0,625	\$11,089	\$11,604	\$12,153	\$13,886
5.75	\$6.04	\$6.30	\$6.61	\$7.55
,870	\$10,368	\$10,814	\$11,346	\$12,960
5.64	\$5.90	\$6.18	\$6.44	\$7.34
,681	\$10,127	\$10,608	\$11,054	\$12,599
5.49	\$5.73	\$6.00	\$6.27	\$7.18
,424	\$98365	\$10,299	\$10,762	\$12,324
				<b>6- - - -</b>
5.36 ,200	\$5.58 \$9,578	\$5.86 \$10,059	\$6.13 \$10,522	\$7.02 \$12,050
	<b>6</b>	6	\$5.85	\$6.69
5.08 ,720	\$5.35 \$9,183	\$5.57 \$9,561	\$10,042	\$11,483
1.89	\$5.10	\$5.34	\$5.56	\$6.38
,394	\$8,754	\$9,166	\$9,544	\$10,951
		75		



The above salary schedule will contain three ongevity steps after ten, fifteen, and twenty years. Longevity payments will not be prorated according to number of weeks worked. Longevity payment will be paid once a year, on or before December 15.

10 years - \$300, 15 years - \$500, 20 years - \$700

Any employee who has completed their tenth, fifteenth, or twentieth year with the School District on or before December 15th qualifies for their respective longevity payments.

Total Hours: 17161/2

## APPENDIX "A" SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK SECRETARIAL-CLERICAL SALARY SCHEDULE FOR 52-WEEK ASSIGNMENTS

JOB CLASSIFICATION	RANGE	LEVEL 1
Admin. Secretary III	26	\$5.94 \$11,583
Admin. Secretary II Bookroom Supervisor	23	\$5.67 \$11,057
Admin. Secretary I Asst. Bookstore Mgr. Bursar-Cashier Fringe Benefits Sr. Payroll Clerk Receptionist	22	\$5.39 \$10,511
Business Office Clerk Payroll Clerk Secretary III Sr. Accts. Payable Substitute Secretary	21	\$5.27 \$10,277
Accts. Payable Clerk Library Assistant Offset Prod. Spec. Records Clerk, II Adm/Rec	20	\$5.13 \$10,004
Secretary II	18	\$4.91 \$9,575
Library Aide Print Prod. Clerk Secretary I 77	16	\$4.65 \$9,068

VEL 2	LEVEL 3	LEVEL 4	LEVEL 5	LEVEL 6
.19	\$6.46	\$6.76	\$7.08	\$8.09
,071	\$12,597	\$13,182	\$13,806	\$15,776
.75	\$6.04	\$6.30	\$6.61	\$7.55
,213	\$11,778	\$12,285	\$12,890	\$14,723
.64	\$5.90	\$6.18	\$6.44	\$7.34
,998	\$11,505	\$12,051	\$12,558	\$14,313
.49	\$5.73	\$6.00	\$6.27	\$7.18
,706	\$11,174	\$11,700	\$12,227	\$14,001
.36	\$5.58	\$5.86	\$6.13	\$7.02
0,452	\$10,881	\$11,427	\$11,954	\$13,689
			1.1.1	
.08	\$5.35	\$5.57	\$5.85	\$6.69
,906	\$10,433	\$10,862	\$11,408	\$13,046
.89	\$5.10	\$5.34	\$5.56	\$6.38
,536	\$9,945	\$10,413	\$10,842	\$12,441
5 52		78		

series.

The preceding salary schedule will contain three longevity steps after ten, fifteen, and twenty years. Longevity payments will not be prorated according to number of weeks worked. Longevity payment will be paid once a year, on or before December 15.

10 years - \$300, 15 years - \$500, 20 years - \$700

Any employee who has completed their tenth, fifteenth, or twentieth year with the School District on or before December 15th qualifies for their respective longevity payments.

# GENERAL INDEX

ccess to Board Information	p. 12
igency Shop	p. 4
ppendix	p. 61
ulletin Boards	p. 54
child Care Leave of Absence	p. 47
College Tuition	p. 57
Communications	p. 15
Contract Implementation Procedures	p. 55
Discipline and Discharge of Non-Proba	tionary
Employees	p. 19
Duration	p. 61
Jues or Service Fee Checkoff	p. 7
imployees Hired for Special Projects Fu	nded by
Federal or State Governments	p. 60
air Employment Practices	p. 11
Grievance Procedure	p. 16
llness or Death in Immediate Family	p. 41
ury Duty	p. 54
ayoff and Recall	p. 29
eave Without Pay	p. 43
Aaternity Leaves of Absence	p. 45
Aedical Coverage and Other Fringe	
Benefits	p. 56
Ailitary Leave	p. 45
New Classification	p. 54
New Probationary Employees	p. 21
lo Strike	p. 60
Other Physical Examinations, Nervous	
Disorder	p. 59
aid Holidays	p. 53
avroll Deductions	p. 13

Personal Business Leave	p. 41
Personnel Files	p. 22
Printing of Agreement	p.62
Professional Meetings, Conferences and	1.1.1
Inservices	p. 14
Promotions, Reassignments, Transfers,	
Vacancies	p. 25
Ratification	p. 61
Recognition	p. 4
Release Time	p. 13
Reservation of Rights	p. 11
Seniority	p. 23
Sick Leave	p. 37
Termination of Employment	P LISUE
or Resignations	p. 59
Tuberculosis Examinations	p. 58
Vacations	p. 50
Work Schedule	p. 3
Workers' Compensation	p. 4





Wichigan State University LABOR AND INDUSTRIAL BELATIONS LIBRARY

SALARY ADDENDUM

ADDENDUM

(1982-84 SALARY SCHEDULE)

to the

Agreement

between

The Board of Education

of the

School District of the City of Highland Park

and the

**Highland Park** 

Federation

of

Educational Secretaries AFT Local 3863

School Alistrict of the Cityof Highland Park 20 Bartlett

20 Bartlett Highland Park, MI. 48203

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK SECRETARIAL-CLERICAL SALARY SCHEDULE FOR 42-WEEK ASSIGNMENTS

1982-83

.

JOB CLASSIFICATION	RANGE	LEVEL 1	LEVEL 2	LEVEL 3	LEVEL 4	LEVEL 5	LEVEL 6
Admin. Secretary III	26	\$ 6.53 \$10,530	\$ 6.81 \$10,981	\$ 7.11 \$11,465	\$ 7.44 \$11,997	\$ 7.79 \$12,561	\$ 8.90 \$14,351
Admin. Secretary II Bookroom Supervisor	23	\$ 6.24 \$10,062	\$ 6.33 \$10,207	\$ 6.64 \$10,707	\$ 6.93 \$11,175	\$ 7.27 \$11,723	\$ 8.31 \$13,400
Admin. Secretary I Asst. Bookstore Mgr. Bursar-Cashier Fringe Benefits Sr. Payroll Clerk Receptionist	22	\$ 5.93 \$ 9,562	\$ 6.20 \$ 9,998	\$ 6.49 \$10,465	\$ 6.80 \$10,965	\$ 7.08 \$11,417	\$ 8.07 \$13,013
Business Office Clerk Payroll Clerk Secretary III Sr. Accts. Payable Substitute Secretary	21	\$ 5.80 \$ 9,353	\$ 6.04 \$ 9,740	\$ 6.30 \$10,159	\$ 6.60 \$10,643	\$ 6.90 \$11,126	\$ 7.90 \$12,739
Accts. Payable Clerk Library Assistant Offset Prod. Spec. Records Clerk, II Adm/Rec	20	\$ 5.64 \$ 9,095	\$ 5.90 \$ 9,514	\$ 6.14 \$ 9,901	\$ 6.45 \$10,401	\$ 6.74 \$10,,868	\$ 7.72 \$12,449
Secretary II	18	\$ 5.40 \$ 8,708	\$ 5.59 \$ 9,014	\$ 5.89 \$ 9,498	\$ 6.13 \$ 9,885	\$ 6.44 \$10,385	\$ 7.36 \$11,868
Library Aide Print Prod. Clerk Secretary I	16	\$ 5.12 \$ 8,256	\$ 5.38 \$ 8,675	\$ 5.61 \$ 9,046	\$ 5.87 \$ 9,465	\$ 6.12 \$ 9,869	\$ 7.02 \$11,320

The preceding salary schedule will contain three longevity steps after ten, fifteen and twenty years. Longevity payments will not be prorated according to number of weeks worked. Longevity payments will be paid once a year, on or before December 15.

10 years-\$300, 15 years-\$550, 20 years-\$800 : Non-accumulative

Any employee who has completed their tenth, fifteenth or twentieth year with the School District, on or before December 15th, qualifies for their respective longevity payments.

Total Hours: 1612 1/2

# SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK SECRETARIAL-CLERICAL SALARY SCHEDULE FOR 46-WEEK ASSIGNMENTS

1982-83

\*

JOB CLASSIFICATION	RANGE	LEVEL 1	LEVEL 2	LEVEL 3	LEVEL 4	LEVEL 5	LEVEL 6
Admin. Secretary III	26	\$ 6.53 \$11,264	\$ 6.81 \$11,747	\$ 7.11 \$12,265	\$ 7.44 \$12,834	\$ 7.79 \$13,438	\$ 8.90 \$15,353
Admin. Secretary II Bookroom Supervisor	23	\$ 6.24 \$10,764	\$ 6.33 \$10,919	\$ 6.64 \$11,454	\$ 6.93 \$11,954	\$ 7.27 \$12,541	\$ 8.31 \$14,335
Admin. Secretary I Asst. Bookstore Mgr. Bursar-Cashier Fringe Benefits Sr. Payroll Clerk Receptionist	22	\$ 5.93 \$10,229	\$ 6.20 \$10,695	\$ 6.49 \$11,195	\$ 6.80 \$11,730	\$ 7.08 \$12,213	\$ 8.07 \$13,921
Business Office Clerk Payroll Clerk Secretary III Sr. Accts. Payable Substitute Secretary	21	\$ 5.80 \$10,005	\$ 6.04 \$10,419	\$ 6.30 \$10,868	\$ 6.60 \$11,385	\$ 6.90 \$11,903	\$ 7.90 \$13,628
Accts. Payable Clerk Library Assistant Offset Prod. Spec. Records Clerk, II Adm/Rec	20	\$ 5.64 \$ 9,729	\$ 5.90 \$10,178	\$ 6.14 \$10,592	\$ 6.45 \$11,126	\$ 6.74 \$11,627	\$ 7.72 \$13,317
Secretary II	18	\$ 5.40 \$ 9,315	\$ 5.59 \$ 9,643	\$ 5.89 \$10,160	\$ 6.13 \$10,574	\$ 6.44 \$11,109	\$ 7.36 \$12,696
Library Aide Print Prod. Clerk Secretary I	16	\$ 5.12 \$ 8,832	\$ 5.38 \$ 9,281	\$ 5.61 \$ 9,677	\$ 5.87 \$10,126	\$ 6.12 \$10,557	\$ 7.02 \$12,110

The preceding salary schedule will contain three longevity steps after ten, fifteen and twenty years. Longevity payments will not be prorated according to number of weeks worked. Longevity payments will be paid once a year, on or before December 15.

10 years-\$300, 15 years-\$550, 20 years-\$800 : Non-accumulative

Any employee who has completed their tenth, fifteenth or twentieth year with the School District, on or before December 15th, qualifies for their respective longevity payments.

# - SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK SECRETARIAL-CLERICAL SALARY SCHEDULE FOR 52-WEEK ASSIGNMENTS

JOB CLASSIFICATION	RANGE	LEVEL 1	LEVEL 2	LEVEL 3	LEVEL 4	LEVEL 5	LEVEL 6
Admin. Secretary III	26	\$ 6.53 \$12,734	\$ 6.81 \$13,280	\$ 7.11 \$13,865	\$ 7.44 \$14,508	\$ 7.79 \$15,191	\$ 8.90 \$17,355
Admin. Secretary II Bookroom Supervisor	23	\$ 6.24 \$12,168	\$ 6.33 \$12,344	\$ 6.64 \$12,948	\$ 6.93 \$13,514	\$ 7.27 \$14,177	\$ 8.31 \$16,205
Admin. Secretary I Asst. Bookstore Mgr. Bursar-Cashier Fringe Benefits Sr. Payroll Clerk Receptionist	22	\$ 5.93 \$11,564	\$ 6.20 \$12,090	\$ 6.49 \$12,656	\$ 6.80 \$13,260	\$ 7.08 \$13,806	\$ 8.07 \$15,737
Business Office Clerk Payroll Clerk Secretary III Sr. Accts. Payable Substitute Secretary	21	\$ 5.80 \$11,310	\$ 6.04 \$11,778	\$ 6.30 \$12,285	\$ 6.60 \$12,870	\$ 6.90 \$13,455	\$ 7.90 \$15,405
Accts. Payable Clerk Library Assistant Offset Prod. Spec. Records Clerk, II Adm/Rec	20	\$ 5.64 \$10,998	\$ 5.90 \$11,505	\$ 6.14 \$11,973	\$ 6.45 \$12,578	\$ 6.74 \$13,143	\$ 7.72 \$15,054
Secretary II	18	\$ 5.40 \$10,530	\$ 5.59 \$10,901	\$ 5.89 \$11,486	\$ 6.13 \$11,954	\$ 6.44 \$12,558	\$ 7.36 \$14,352
Library Aide Print Prod. Clerk Secretary I	16	\$ 5.12 \$ 9,984	\$ 5.38 \$10,491	\$ 5.61 \$10,940	\$ 5.87 \$11,447	\$ 6.12 \$11,934	\$ 7.02 \$13,689

The preceding salary schedule will contain three longevity steps after ten, fifteen and twenty years. Longevity payments will not be prorated according to number of weeks worked. Longevity payments will be paid once a year, on or before December 15.

10 years-\$300, 15 years-\$550, 20 years-\$800 : Non-accumulative

Any employee who has completed their tenth, fifteenth or twentieth year with the School District, on or before December 15th, qualifies for their respective longevity payments.

## SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK SECRETARIAL-CLERICAL SALARY SCHEDULE FOR 42-WEEK ASSIGNMENTS

1983-84

•

JOB CLASSIFICATION	RANGE	LEVEL 1	LEVEL 2	LEVEL 3	LEVEL 4	LEVEL 5	LEVEL 6
Admin. Secretary III	26	\$ 6.92 \$11,159	\$ 7.22 \$11,642	\$ 7.54 \$12,158	\$ 7.89 \$12,723	\$ 8.26 \$13,319	\$ 9.43 \$15,206
Admin. Secretary II Bookroom Supervisor	23	\$ 6.61 \$10,659	\$ 6.71 \$10,820	\$ 7.04 \$11,352	\$ 7.35 \$11,852	\$ 7.71 \$12,432	\$ 8.81 \$14,206
Admin. Secretary I Asst. Bookstore Mgr. Bursar-Cashier Fringe Benefits Sr. Payroll Clerk Receptionist	22	\$ 6.29 \$10,143	\$ 6.57 \$10,594	\$ 6.88 \$11,094	\$ 7.21 \$11,626	\$ 7.50 \$12,094	\$ 8.55 \$13,787
Business Office Clerk Payroll Clerk Secretary III Sr. Accts. Payable Substitute Secretary	21	\$ 6.15 \$ 9,917	\$ 6.40 \$10,320	\$ 6.68 \$10,772	\$ 7.00 \$11,288	\$ 7.31 \$11,787	\$ 8.37 \$13,497
Accts. Payable Clerk Library Assistant Offset Prod. Spec. Records Clerk, II Adm/Rec	20	\$ 5.98 \$ 9,643	\$ 6.25 \$10,078	\$ 6.51 \$10,497	\$ 6.84 \$11,030	\$ 7.14 \$11,513	\$ 8.18 \$13,190
Secretary II	18	\$ 5.72 \$ 9,224	\$ 5.93 \$ 9,562	\$ 6.24 \$10,062	\$ 6.50 \$10,481	\$ 6.83 \$11,013	\$ 7.80 \$12,578
Library Aide Print Prod. Clerk Secretary I	16	\$ 5.43 \$ 8,756	\$ 5.70 \$ 9,191	\$ 5.95 \$ 9,594	\$ 6.22 \$10,030	\$ 6.49 \$10,465	\$ 7.44 \$11,997

The preceding salary schedule will contain three longevity steps after ten, fifteen and twenty years. Longevity payments will not be prorated according to number of weeks worked. Longevity payments will be paid once a year, on or before December 15.

10 years-\$300, 15 years-\$550, 20 years-\$800 : Non-accumulative

Any employee who has completed their tenth, fifteenth or twentieth year with the School District, on or before December 15th, qualifies for their respective longevity payments.

Total Hours: 1612 1/2

# SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK SECRETARIAL-CLERICAL SALARY SCHEDULE FOR 46-WEEK ASSIGNMENTS

1983-84

.

1

JOB CLASSIFICATION	RANGE	LEVEL 1	LEVEL 2	LEVEL 3	LEVEL 4	LEVEL 5	LEVEL 6
Admin. Secretary III	26	\$ 6.92 \$11,937	\$ 7.22 \$12,455	\$ 7.54 \$13,007	\$ 7.89 \$13,610	\$ 8.26 \$14,249	\$ 9.43 \$16,267
Admin. Secretary II Bookroom Supervisor	23	\$ 6.61 \$11,402	\$ 6.71 \$11,575	\$ 7.04 \$12,144	\$ 7.35 \$12,679	\$ 7.71 \$13,300	\$ 8.81 \$15,197
Admin. Secretary I Asst. Bookstore Mgr. Bursar-Cashier Fringe Benefits Sr. Payroll Clerk Receptionist	22	\$ 6.29 \$10,850	\$ 6.57 \$11,333	\$ 6.88 \$11,868	\$ 7.21 \$12,437	\$ 7.50 \$12,938	\$ 8.55 \$14,749
Business Office Clerk Payroll Clerk Secretary III Sr. Accts. Payable Substitute Secretary	21	\$ 6.15 \$10,609	\$ 6.40 \$11,040	\$ 6.68 \$11,523	\$ 7.00 \$12,075	\$ 7.31 \$12,610	\$ 8.37 \$14,438
Accts. Payable Clerk Library Assistant Offset Prod. Spec. Records Clerk, II Adm/Rec	20	\$ 5.98 \$10,316	\$ 6.25 \$10,781	\$ 6.51 \$11,230	\$ 6.84 \$11,799	\$ 7.14 \$12,317	\$ 8.18 \$14,111
Secretary II	18	\$ 5.72 \$ 9,867	\$ 5.93 \$10,229	\$ 6.24 \$10,764	\$ 6.50 \$11,212	\$ 6.83 \$11,782	\$ 7.80 \$13,455
Library Aide Print Prod. Clerk Secretary I	16	\$ 5.43 \$ 9,367	\$ 5.70 \$ 9,833	\$ 5.95 \$10,264	\$ 6.22 \$10,730	\$ 6.49 \$11,195	\$ 7.44 \$12,834

The preceding salary schedule will contain three longevity steps after ten, fifteen and twenty years. Longevity payments will not be prorated according to number of weeks worked. Longevity payments will be paid once a year, on or before December 15.

10 years-\$300, 15 years-\$550, 20 years-\$800 : Non-accumulative

Any employee who has completed their tenth, fifteenth or twentieth year with the School District, on or before December 15th, qualifies for their respective longevity payments.

# SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK SECRETARIAL-CLERICAL SALARY SCHEDULE FOR 52-WEEK ASSIGNMENTS

JOB CLASSIFICATION	RANGE	LEVEL 1	LEVEL 2	LEVEL 3	LEVEL 4	LEVEL 5	LEVEL 6
Admin. Secretary III	26	\$ 6.92 \$13,494	\$ 7.22 \$14,079	\$ 7.54 \$14,703	\$ 7.89 \$15,386	\$ 8.26 \$16,107	\$ 9.43 \$18,389
Admin. Secretary II Bookroom Supervisor	23	\$ 6.61 \$12,890	\$ 6.71 \$13,085	\$ 7.04 \$13,728	\$ 7.35 \$14,333	\$ 7.71 \$15,035	\$ 8.81 \$17,180
Admin. Secretary I Asst. Bookstore Mgr. Bursar-Cashier Fringe Benefits Sr. Payroll Clerk Receptionist	22	\$ 6.29 \$12,266	\$ 6.57 \$12,812	\$ 6.88 \$13,416	\$ 7.21 \$14,060	\$ 7.50 \$14,625	\$ 8.55 \$16,673
Business Office Clerk Payroll Clerk Secretary III Sr. Accts. Payable Substitute Secretary	21	\$ 6.15 \$11,993	\$ 6.40 \$12,480	\$ 6.68 \$13,026	\$ 7.00 \$13,650	\$ 7.31 \$14,255	\$ 8.37 \$16,322
Accts. Payable Clerk Library Assistant Offset Prod. Spec. Records Clerk, II Adm/Rec	20	\$ 5.98 \$11,661	\$ 6.25 \$12,188	\$ 6.51 \$12,695	\$ 6.84 \$13,338	\$ 7.14 \$13,923	\$ 8.18 \$15,951
Secretary II	18	\$ 5.72 \$11,154	\$ 5.93 \$11,564	\$ 6.24 \$12,168	\$ 6.50 \$12,675	\$ 6.83 \$13,319	\$ 7.80 \$15,210
Library Aide Print Prod. Clerk Secretary I	16	\$ 5.43 \$10,589	\$ 5.70 \$11,115	\$ 5.95 \$11,603	\$ 6.22 \$12,129	\$ 6.49 \$12,656	\$ 7.44 \$14,508

The preceding salary schedule will contain three longevity steps after ten, fifteen and twenty years. Longevity payments will not be prorated according to number of weeks worked. Longevity payments will be paid once a year, on or before December 15.

10 years-\$300, 15 years-\$550, 20 years-\$800 : Non-accumulative

Any employee who has completed their tenth, fifteenth or twentieth year with the School District, on or before December 15th, qualifies for their respective longevity payments.

# 30. MEDICAL COVERAGE AND OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS\*

(b) The Board of Education shall pay the premium necessary to provide,, without cost to the members of the bargaining unit, group life insurance protection which pay to the member's designated beneficiary the sum of \$20,000 upon death and \$20,000 for accidental death and dismemberment. The nature and amount of benefits and commencement and duration of coverage shall be as specified in the master insurance premiums as above specified.

\*No change in medical coverage, dental insurance and optical.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement by their duly authorized representatives on this 13th day of October, 1982.

BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK

President of the Board



NEGOTIATING COMMITTEE:

HIGHLAND PARK FEDERATION OF EDUCATIONAL SECRETARIES

: alle President

NEGOTIATING COMMITTEE:

1 net

